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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Turk Traktor ve Ziraat Makineleri A.S.

1.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Turk Traktér ve Ziraat
Makineleri A.S. (the “Company”) which comprise the balance sheet as of 31 December
2008 and the statement of income, the statement of changes in equity and the
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

2.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements that have been prepared in accordance with the financial reporting standards
issued by the Capital Markets Board (“CMB”). This responsibility includes: designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards issued by the
CMB. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion

4. In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Tirk Traktor ve Ziraat Makineleri A.S. as of 31
December 2008, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with the financial reporting standards issued by the CMB (Note 2).

Basaran Nas Bagimsiz Denetim ve
Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Misavirlik A.S.
a member of

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Murat Sancar, SMMM
Partner

Istanbul, 23 February 2009
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF FINANCIAL S TATEMENTS

ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH
TURK TRAKTOR VE Z IRAAT MAK INELERI A.S.

BALANCE SHEETS
AT 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

(Amounts expressed in New Turkish Lira (YTL), urdegherwise indicated)

Restated (*)

Notes 2008 2007
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS 721.732.176 476.674.122
Cash and cash equivalents 4 115.684.361 48.041.301
Trade receivables
- Trade receivables 8 193.836.628 177.651.505
- Due from related parties 23 84.760.004 57.41%3.44
Inventories 9 275.109.457 172.942.465
Other current assets 12 52.341.726 20.565.405
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 241.412.927 130.232.182
Trade receivables 8 181.016.360 71.019.501
Financial assets 5 6.541.500 4.809.313
Property, plant and equipment 10 39.609.588 4102136.
Intangible assets 11 5.655.667 2.599.918
Deferred tax assets 21 8.200.194 9.157.545
Other non-current assets 12 389.618 709.864
TOTAL ASSETS 963.145.103 606.906.304

(*) Please refer to Notes 2.1 and 3

The financial statements prepared as at and foydhe ended 31 December 2008 have been approved
and signed by the Board of Directors on 23 Febra09.

The accompanying notes form an integral part adeéHenancial statements.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF FINANCIAL S TATEMENTS

ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

TURK TRAKTOR VE Z IRAAT MAK INELERI A.S.

BALANCE SHEETS
AT 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

(Amounts expressed in New Turkish Lira (YTL), urdegherwise indicated)

Restated (*)

Notes 2008 2007
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES 649.380.378 221.207.904
Financial liabilities 6 504.795.652 94.185.750
Other financial liabilities 7 6.131.604 5.201.853
Trade payables
- Trade payables 8 74.433.859 73.348.459
- Due to related parties 23 38.094.856 18.461.702
Taxation on income 21 - 3.773.812
Provisions 13 12.360.035 11.408.794
Other current liabilities 12 13.564.372 14.827.534
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 28.211.920 82.762.282
Financial liabilities 6 20.637.929 64.132.500
Other financial liabilities 7 - 11.154.192
Provision for employment termination benefits 14 57R.991 7.475.590
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 285.552.805 302.936.118
Share capital 15 53.369.000 53.369.000
Adjustments to share capital 15 39.014.356 3D3Bb
Fair value reserves 15 3.634.098 1.988.520
Hedge reserve 7,15 (4.905.283) (13.084.836)
Merger reserve 15 (5.569.000) (5.569.000)
Restricted profit reserves 15 56.617.017 47.452.017
Retained earnings 15 76.601.061 87.039.298
Net profit for the year 15 66.791.556 92.726.763
TOTAL LIABILITIES 963.145.103 606.906.304
(*) Please refer to Notes 2.1 and 3
Provisions, contingent assets and

contingent liabilities 13

The accompanying notes form an integral part aseH@ancial statements.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF FINANCIAL S TATEMENTS

ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

TURK TRAKTOR VE Z IRAAT MAK INELERI A.S.

STATEMENTS OF INCOME FOR THE YEARS ENDED

AT 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

(Amounts expressed in New Turkish Lira (YTL), usdeotherwise indicated)

Restated(*)
1 January - 1 January -
Notes 31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Sales (net) 16 787.491.026 640.899.127
Cost of sales (-) 16 (649.306.626) (492.036.010)
GROSS PROFIT 138.184.400 148.863.117
Marketing, selling and distribution expenses (-) 17 (34.344.444) (29.759.411)
General administrative expenses (-) 17 (24.691.311) (22.930.964)
Research and development expenses (-) 17 (2.930.210  (3.271.708)
Other operating income 18 1.574.190 1.403.028
Other operating expenses (-) 18 (13.095.054) (38850
OPERATING PROFIT 64.697.571 91.153.175
Financial income 19 239.355.785 95.749.969
Financial expenses (-) 20 (221.349.718) (71.183.925
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION ON INCOME 82.703.638 115.72.219
Taxes on income (-) 21 (17.086.228) (25.804.714)
Deferred tax income 21 1.174.146 2.810.258
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 66.791.556 92.726.763
Earnings per share (YTL) 22 0,0125 0,0174

(*) Please refer to Notes 2.1 and 3

The accompanying notes form an integral part adeéHenancial statements.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF FINANCIAL S TATEMENTS
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

TURK TRAKTOR VE Z iIRAAT MAK INELERI A.S.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

(Amounts expressed in New Turkish Lira (YTL), urdegherwise indicated)

Adjustment Restricted Total
Share to share Fair value Hedge Merger profit Btained Net profit for shareholders’
capital capital reserves reserve reserve resrerse earnings the year equity
1 January 2007 - as previously reported 47.000.000 39.014.356 1.988.520 - - 33.610.118 58.075.641  .77P3996 293.461.631
Effect of merger (Notes 2.1 and 3) 6.369.000 - - - (5.569.000) 3.376.899 30.501.965 2.153.696 365882
1 January 2007 - restated 53.369.000 39.014.356  98B.520 - (5.569.000) 36.987.017 88.577.606 1156926 330.294.191
Transfers - - - - - 10.465.000 105.461.692  (115.926.692)
Dividends paid - - - - - - (107.000.000) - (10700m0)
Decrease in the fair value of
derivative financial instruments - - - (16.3456) - - - - (16.356.045)
Deferred tax calculated on decrease in
fair value of derivative financial instruments - - - 3.271.209 - - - - 3.271.209
Net profit for the year - - - - - - - 92.726.763 92.726.763
31 December 2007 - restated 53.369.000 39.014.356 1.988.520 (13.084.836) (5.569.000) 47.452.017 B 92.726.763 302.936.118
Adjustment Restricted Total
Share to share Fair value Hedge Merger profit Btained Net profit for shareholders’
capital capital reserves reserve reserve resrerse earnings the year equity
1 January 2008 - as previously reported 47.000.000 39.014.356 1.988.520 - - 44.075.118 54.383.637 0681245 277.527.876
Effect of merger (Notes 2.1 and 3) 6.369.000 - - (13.084.836) (5.569.000) 3.376.899 32.655.661 15360 25.408.242
1 January 2008 - restated 53.369.000 39.014.356  98B.520 (13.084.836) (5.569.000) 47.452.017 87298D. 92.726.763 302.936.118
Transfers - - - - - 9.165.000 83.561.763 (92.726.763)
Dividends paid - - - - - - (94.000.000) - (94.00m0)
Increase in the fair value of
available for sale investments - - 1.732.187 - - - - 1.732.187
Deferred tax calculated on increase in
fair value of available for sale investments - - (86.609) - - - - - (86.609)
Increase in the fair value of
derivative financial instruments - - - 10.22414 - - - - 10.224.441
Deferred tax calculated on increase in
fair value of derivative financial instruments - - - (2.044.888) - - - - (2.044.888)
Net profit for the year - - - - - - - 66.79165 66.791.556
31 December 2008 53.369.000 39.014.356 3.634.098 4.906.283) (5.569.000) 56.617.017 76.601.061 665881 285.552.805

The accompanying notes form an integral part ofetfenancial statements.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF FINANCIAL S

ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

TURK TRAKTOR VE Z iIRAAT MAK INELERI A.S.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEARS ENDED

AT 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

(Amounts expressed in New Turkish Lira (YTL), uislesherwise indicated).

TATEMENTS

Restated (*)

Notes 2008 2007

Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit before taxation on income 82.703.638 115.229
Depreciation 10 10.410.504 14.744.545
Amortisation 11 413.697 308.262
Provision for employment termination benefits 14 384.747 1.221.215
Gain from sales of property, plant and equipmenst- 18 (361.094) (94.175)
Interest income 19 (7.286.889) (9.022.875)
Interest expense 20 34.519.310 15.828.884
Provision for impairment of inventory 731.907 2839
Expense accruals-net 951.241 2.465.538
Provision for doubtful receivables 18 12.497.982 499.002
Net cash flow before changes in operating assets

and liabilities 135.965.043 142.939.004
Changes in operating assets and liabilities - net:
Increase in trade receivables 8 (138.550.297) ERATS5)
Increase in due from related parties 23 (27.289.55 (25.630.484)
Increase in inventories 9 (102.898.898) (40.582.889
Increase in other current assets 12 (27.648.269) .68%3P74)
Decrease/(increase) in other non-current assets 12 320.245 (708.840)
Increase in due to related parties 23 19.633.154 9513378
Increase in trade payables 8 1.085.400 35.332.281
(Decrease)/increase in other short-term liabilites 12 (1.263.162) 9.889.301
Employment termination benefits paid 14 (1.286.346) (1.936.866)
Taxes paid 21 (24.988.090) (26.710.004)
Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities (166.917.778) 35.798.632
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures 10,11 (11.908.167) (11.739.871
Gain from sales of property, plant and equipment

and intangible assets 715.765 228.137
Interest received 7.311.670 9.874.245
Net cash provided by investing activities (3.88032) (1.632.489)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from bank borrowings 621.266.882 23090B3.
Repayments of bank borrowings (262.044.121) (IZR14)
Dividends paid (94.000.000) (107.000.000)
Interest paid (26.626.743) (17.616.537)
Net cash provided by/(used in)

financing activities 238.596.018 (93.267.755)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equisalent 67.797.508 (59.101.612)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of thegr 4 47.651.090 106.752.702
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4 115.448.598 47.651.090

(*) Please refer to Notes 2.1 and 3

The accompanying notes form an integral part aseH@ancial statements.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF FINANCIAL S TATEMENTS
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

TURK TRAKTOR VE Z IRAAT MAK INELERI A.S.

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

(Amounts expressed in New Turkish Lira (“YTL”"), @sls otherwise indicated)

NOTE 1 - ORGANISATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Tark Traktor ve Ziraat Makineleri A. (the “Company”) was established in 1954 in Ankeama
Minneapolis Moline Turk Traktor ve Ziraat Makindlé:.S. to undertake the manufacturing and trade of
farm tractors, harvesters and other agriculturammery and equipment. The name of the Company was
changed as Turk Traktor Ziraat MakinelerSAin 1968 upon the purchase of 25% of the sharkelskye
Ege Makina ve Ticaret A., a group company of the Ko¢ HoldingSA.(“Ko¢ Holding”). As of 31
December 2008, major shareholders of the Companitag Holding and CNH Global N.V. (“CNH")
(Note 15). The number of personnel working withie ICompany as of 31 December 2008 is 1.476
(2007: 1.557).

The Company conducts marketing and selling aatiwith the domestic market, through its 114 sales
dealers and 71 spare part dealers.

The Company is registered in Turkey in the follogvaddress:

Guvercin Yolu No: 111-112
06560 - Gazi Ankara

The Company has been quotedstéinbul Stock Exchangel8E”) and as of 31 December 2008, 22%
(2007: 22%) of the Company shares have been tiadbd stock exchange market (Note 15).

The available for sale financial assets of the Camgpconsists of Entek Elektrik Uretimi .
("Entek”) (Note 5).

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 Basis of presentation
Principles governing the preparation of financial satements

The Capital Markets Board of Turkey (“CMB”) reguddt the principles and procedures of
preparation, presentation and announcement of diabatatements prepared by the entities with the
Communigué No: XI-29, “Principles of Financial Refixag in Capital Markets” (“the Communiqué”).
This Communiqué is effective for the annual yedasting from 1 January 2008 and supersedes the
Communigué No: XI-25 “The Financial Reporting Starti$ in the Capital Markets”. According to
the Communiqué, entities shall prepare their fignstatements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IAS/IFRS") endorbgdhe European Uniotuntil the differences of
the IAS/IFRS as endorsed by the European Union ftbm ones issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) are announced Turkish Accounting Standards Board
(“TASB"), IAS/IFRS issued by the IASB shall be apgal. Accordingly, Turkish Accounting
Standards/Turkish Financial Reporting StandardAS/MFRS”) issued by the TASB which are in
line with the aforementioned standards shall besiclened.

With the decision taken on 17 March 2005, the CMB hnnounced that, effective from 1 January
2005, the application of inflation accounting isloager required for companies operating in Turkey
and preparing their financial statements in acamdawith the accounting and financial reporting
principles accepted by the CMB (“CMB Financial Repw Standards”). Accordingly, the Company
did not apply IAS 29 “Financial Reporting in Hypgffationary Economies” (“IAS 29”) issued by
IASB in its financial statements for the accountyegrs starting 1 January 2005.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF FINANCIAL S TATEMENTS
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

TURK TRAKTOR VE Z IRAAT MAK INELERI A.S.

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

(Amounts expressed in New Turkish Lira (“YTL”"), @sls otherwise indicated)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEME NTS (Continued)

As the differences of the IAS/IFRS endorsed by EHueopean Union from the ones issued by the
IASB has not been announced by TASB as of daterefgration of these financial statements, the
condensed financial statements have been prepatteid the framework of Communiqué Xl, No: 29
and related promulgations to this Communiqué aseidsby the CMB in accordance with CMB
Financial Reporting Standards which is based onIFSS .The financial statements and the related
notes to them are presented in accordance witHfaimeats recommended by the CMB with the
promulgation dated 14 April 2008, including the guisory disclosures. Therefore, previous year
financial statements restated, where necessary.

Comparatives and restatement of prior year financihstatements

The financial statements of the Company include pamative financial information to enable the
determination of the financial position and perfanmoe. As explained in Note 3, the Company has
merged with New Holland Trakmak Trakttr ve ZiraaaWhalar AS. (“Trakmak”) as of 31 March
2008, through transfer of all the assets and li&sl of Trakmak into the Company as a whole. The
comparative balance sheet of the Company as of &ember 2007 and the statement of income,
changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flowdHeryear then ended and the related explanatory
notes have been restated by combining the finastaééments of Trakmak as of 31 December 2007,
prepared in accordance with the CMB financial répgrstandards.

In addition, the Company has made the necessafgsgsfications in the prior year financial

statements to comply with the format changes stateithe announcement of CMB related to the
financial statements and the explanatory notesapeepin accordance with CMB Communiqué XI,
No: 29 “Principles of Financial Reporting in Capitéarkets”.

Turkish Lira

In accordance with the Article 1 of the Law numlok583 concerning the “Currency of the Republic
of Turkey” and according to the Decision of The @cili of Ministers dated 4 April 2007 and
No: 2007/11963, the prefix “New” used in the “NewrKish Lira” and the “New Kurgl will be
removed as of 1 January 2009. When the prior nayeNew Turkish lira (“YTL"), values are
converted into TL and Kr, YTL1 and YKr1 shall beudgplent to TL1 and Krl, respectively.

All references made to New Turkish Lira or Liralaws, other legislation, administrative transaction

court decisions, legal transactions, negotiablérun®ents and other documents that produce legal
effects as well as payment and exchange instrunséiais be considered to have been made to TL at
the conversion rate indicated above. Consequesffigctive from 1 January 2009, the TL replaces the
YTL as a unit of account in keeping and presentihdooks, accounts and financial statements.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset andntteamount reported in the balance sheet whea ther
a legally enforceable right to set off the recogdismounts and there is an intention to settle neta
basis, or realise the asset and settle the Iakilihultaneously.



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF FINANCIAL S TATEMENTS
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

TURK TRAKTOR VE Z IRAAT MAK INELERI A.S.

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

(Amounts expressed in New Turkish Lira (“YTL”"), @sls otherwise indicated)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEME NTS (Continued)

2.2 Errors and changes in accounting policies/estations

Material changes in accounting policies or mategiabrs are corrected, retrospectively; restatite t
prior year financial statements. Effect of changesccounting estimates affecting current year is
recognized in the current year; effect of changeacdcounting estimates affecting current and future
years is recognised in the current year and alfatime years.

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies, consistently laggpwith prior years, adopted in the preparatién o
these financial statements are set out below:

Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognised on an accrual basis tinnehe Company sells a product to the customer,

the significant risks and rewards of ownershiphaf goods is transferred to the buyer, the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably and it is probialethe economic benefits associated with the

transaction will flow to the Company at the failua of considerations received or receivable. Net

sales represent the invoiced value of trading geotls less sales returns, discount and commissions
(Note 16).

Other revenues such as interest income is recaboisean accrual basis using the effective interest
rate method, rent income under operating leaseeagets is recognised on an accrual basis and
dividend income is recognised when the right tenez dividend is established.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost orreatisable value. Net realisable value is the edeoh
selling price, less the costs of completion andirgglexpenses (Note 9). Cost elements included in
inventories comprise total purchase costs and ath&lis incurred in bringing the inventories to thei
present location and condition. The unit cost afeimories is determined on the weighted average
basis.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment acquired before Lialgri2005 are carried at cost in purchasing power
of YTL as at 31 December 2004 less accumulatededeggion and impairment losses. Property, plant
and equipment acquired after 1 January 2005 argedaat cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation is provided onraigit-line basis based on the estimated usefesliv
of the assets (Note 10). Land is not depreciatetissleemed to have an indefinite life.

The estimated useful lives for property, plant aqdipment are as follows:

Years
Buildings 25-50 years
Land improvements 10-25 years
Machinery and equipment 4-10 years
Motor vehicles 4-5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5-6 years
Special costs 4-10rgea



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF FINANCIAL S TATEMENTS
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

TURK TRAKTOR VE Z IRAAT MAK INELERI A.S.

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

(Amounts expressed in New Turkish Lira (“YTL”"), @sls otherwise indicated)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEME NTS (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised for the amountvhjch the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. Gain or losses on disposgisoplerty, plant and equipment with respect to their
restated net book values are included in the biatome and expense accounts (Note 17).

Repair and maintenance expenditures are charghe iacome statement as they are incurred. Repair
and maintenance expenditures are capitalised i tesult in an enlargement or substantial
improvement of the respective assets and deprdaatr remaining useful life of related asset.

Intangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets comprise of rights and aapsoftware. Those acquired before 1 January
2005 are carried at cost in the purchasing powerTdf as at 31 December 2004; less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Those acquifest 1 January 2005 are carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment lossesaa@ddepreciated using the straight-line method
over their useful lives of five and ten years faling the acquisition date. Where impairment indicat
exists, the carrying amount of any intangible assetssessed and written down to its recoverable
amount (Note 11).

Impairment of assets

Property, plant and equipment and other non-cuassets including intangible assets, except deferre
tax assets (Note 21), are reviewed for impairmesgds at each balance sheet date whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrgimgunt may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which they@agramount of the asset or any cash generatirtg uni
of that asset exceeds its recoverable amount whithe higher of an asset's net selling price and
value in use. Impairment losses are accounteahftita statement of income.

Impairment loss on assets can be reversed to teatexf previously recorded impairment losses, in
cases where increases in the recoverable valugecddset can be associated with events that occur
subsequent to the period when the impairment |@ssrecorded.

Borrowing cost

Bank borrowings are recognised initially at theqaeds received, net of any transaction costs iedurr
(Note 6). In subsequent periods, borrowings artates at amortised cost using the effective yield
method. Any proceeds (net of transaction costs) thedredemption value are recognised in the
statement of income over the period of the borrgwirBorrowing costs are expensed as incurred
(Note 20).
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEME NTS (Continued)
Related parties

For the purpose of these financial statements, @oyip shareholders, key management personnel
and Board members, in each case together withfdmaities and companies controlled by or affiliated
with them and associated companies are consideceteéerred to as related parties (Note 23).

Segment reporting

As the Company operates only in production andetraidagricultural machinery and equipment, in
Turkey, segment reporting of the financial inforioatis not disclosed.

Business combinations

The Company has merged with Trakmak as of 31 Magg8, through transfer of all the assets and
liabilities of Trakmak into the Company as a wholBefore and after the merge, since the merging
companies have been controlled by the same shderhplthe merge has been defined as “business
combinations involving entities under common coliitrand it has been decided to apply an
accounting policy in line with the “pooling of imst” method. In the accounting of business
combinations which occur under common control, tassend liabilities subject to business
combination are accounted in the financial statemen their carrying values, and the income
statements have been consolidated as of the begimfithe financial year in which the business
combination occurred. Financial statements of ther periods were also restated for comparison
purposes. As a result of merge, no goodwill or tiegayoodwill has been calculated. The difference
between the capital increase resulted from merddtancapital of the merging company is accounted
in “merger reserve” under shareholders’ equity éNb).

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified in accordance thithintention at acquisition. Company management
determines appropriate classification of its inwesits at the time of purchase and re-evaluateg thes
classifications in each financial year-end. The @any has classified its financial instruments
accordingly:

a) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finarasakets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They arise wherCibrapany provides money, goods or services directly
to a debtor with no intention of trading the reabile. They are included in current assets, exaept f
maturities greater than 12 months after the balaheet date which are classified as non-curreetass
Loans and receivables are included in trade andr a#ceivables in the balance sheet. Loans and
receivables are recognised initially at the proseexteived, net of any transaction costs incurired.
subsequent periods, loans are stated at amortistdsing the effective yield method.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEME NTS (Continued)

b)  Available for sale investments

Investments intended to be held for an indefinggqal of time, which may be sold in response taleee

for liquidity or changes in interest rates, or mtdssified in any other categories, are classifisd
available-for -sale; these are included in nonemrrassets unless management has expressed the
intention of holding the investment for less th&hmonths from the balance sheet date or unless they
will need to be sold to raise operating capital,which case they are included in current assets.
Management determines the appropriate classifitatiots investments at the time of the purchask an
re-evaluates such designation on a regular basis.

All financial assets are initially recognized astof purchase plus transaction costs, which ifainealue
of the asset. If available-for-sale investmentsehguoted market prices in active markets or thadir f
values can be reliably measured by use of valuatiethodologies they are stated at fair value. Hewidv
available-for-sale investments are not quoted iiveaanarket, or their fair values cannot be reljabl
measured through other valuation methods, thegtated at cost restated to the purchasing poweér bf
at 31 December 2004 for the investments purchasferlebl January 2005 and stated at cost for thesite
purchased after 1 January 2005, less a provisiomfmairment (Note 5). The Company accounts fongjai
and losses from available-for-sale investmentgctliy in shareholders’ equity until those investtaeare
liquidated.

Fair value changes of the available for sale imuests are calculated as the difference between the
discounted values of these investments and thevdhie at the balance sheet date. When the awailabl
for sale investments are liquidated, the relatedsgand losses deferred under shareholders’ egraty
transferred directly to the statement of incoméhdfe is permanent negative difference betweendbe

of purchase and the fair value of the investmén,i$ recognized as loss in the statement of icom

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially regosed in the balance sheet at cost and subseguentl
are re-measured at their fair value. The derivaihgtruments of the Company mainly consist of
forward foreign currency-buy contracts (Note 7).

These derivative financial instruments, becauseroiding effective economic hedges under the
Company’s risk management position and qualifyimghfedge accounting under the specific rules in
IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measnent”, are treated as cash flow hedge in the
accompanying financial statements. Changes inahevélue of derivative financial instruments, as

assessed to be effective are recognised in “hexgeve” under shareholders’ equity (Note 7).

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, cemwé hedge no longer meets the criteria
for hedge accounting under IAS 39, any cumulata@ @r loss existing in equity at that time
remains in equity and is recognised when the cotachiir forecasted transaction ultimately
is recognised in the statement of shareholder' gyedtithe committed or forecasted
transaction expected to occur in the future ism@ed in the income statement or if does not
occur, the cumulative gain or loss is reflected ithie financial statements as gain or loss to
the statement of income.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEME NTS (Continued)
Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies during the mkhave been translated into YTL at the exchangss rat
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Mayetssets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies have been translated into YTL at théaxge rates prevailing at the balance sheet dates.
Foreign exchange gains or losses arising from #tdement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities reagnised in the statement of income. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities, which are recognised atviue, have been translated into YTL at the emgha
rates prevailing at the dates of fair value deteedhi

Earnings per share

Earnings per share disclosed in the statementscofrie are determined by dividing net income for the
period by the weighted average number of share¢fietve been outstanding during the period (Note 22)

In Turkey, companies can increase their shareatdpitmaking a pro-rata distribution of shares (ib®
shares”) to existing shareholders from retainediegs and revaluation surplus. For the purpose of
earnings per share computations, the weighted g&eramber of shares outstanding during the period
has been adjusted in respect of bonus shares iggilesit a corresponding change in resources, by
giving them retroactive effect for the year in whibey were issued and for each earlier year.

Subsequent events

Events after the balance sheet date are thoseseveren if those events occur after the public
announcement of profit or of other selected finahiciformation, that occur between the balancetshee
date and the date when the financial statementsautieorised for issue. The Company adjusts the
amounts recognized in its financial statementsetieet adjusting events after the balance sheet dat
The events that occur subsequent to the balanet da and not require a correction to be made are
disclosed in accompanying notes, where the dea@sbthe users of financial statements are affected

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent lialiies

Possible assets or obligations that arise from @amtts and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or moertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company are treated as contingesgta®r liabilities. The Company does not recognize
contingent assets and liabilities. A contingerility is disclosed, unless the possibility of antfeow

of resources embodying economic benefits is remfotmntingent asset is disclosed, where an inflow
of economic benefits is probable (Note 13).

Provisions are recognised when the Company haeszmrr legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is more likely than not thatanflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably eséthaWhere there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will wequired in settlement is determined by considgerin
the class of obligations as a whole. A provisioreisognised even if the likelihood of an outflowthwi
respect to any one item included in the same @éssbligations may be small. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEME NTS (Continued)

In cases where the time value of money is mateapralisions are determined as the present value of
expenses required to be made to honor the liabilibhe rate used to discount provisions to their
present values is determined taking into accoumtiriterest rate in the related markets and the risk
associated with the liability. This discount rateed not consider risks associated with future 8ash
estimates and should be pre-tax.

Leases
(1) The Company - asthe lessee
Financial Leases

Finance leases are capitalized at the inceptidheofease at the lower of the fair value of theséeh
property or the present value of the minimum lepagments. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance charges so aadioieve a constant rate on the finance balance
outstanding. The corresponding rental obligatiomst of finance charges, are included in other
liabilities and reduced as they are paid. The @seelement of the finance cost is charged to the
statement of income over the lease period. Theeptppplant and equipment acquired under finance
leases are depreciated over the useful life oasiset (Note 10).

Operating Leases

Leases where a significant portion of the risks @waards of ownership are retained by the lessor ar
classified as operating leases. Payments made wmgating leases are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the pearfdbe lease.

(2) The Company - asthe lessor
Operating Leases

In the case of operating lease, the leased prepeadte classified as property, plant and equipment
the balance sheet and the rent revenues generated dhe reporting period are reflected to the
income statement on a straight-line basis ovepén®d of the lease.

Research and development expenses

Research expenditure is recognized as an expemseuased. Costs incurred on development projects
(relating to the design and testing of new or impob products) are recognized as intangible assets
when the following criteria are fulfilled:

- itis technically feasible to complete the intargiasset so that it will be available for use;

- management intends to complete the intangible assktise or sell it;

- there is an ability to use or sell the intangildeet;

- it can be demonstrated how the intangible assépetilerate probable future economic benefits;

- adequate technical, financial and other resoue®mplete the development and to use or sell
the intangible asset are available; and

- the expenditure attributable to the intangible tagh&ring its development can be reliably
measured.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEME NTS (Continued)

Other development expenditures that do not meedetloziteria are recognized as an expense as

incurred. Development costs previously recognize@draexpense are not recognized as an asset in a
subsequent period. Capitalised development costeeaorded as intangible assets and amortised from

the point at which the asset is ready for use etraaght-line basis over its useful life, not extieg

five years (Note 11).

Development assets are tested for impairment alynuabccordance with I1AS 36.
Taxes on income

Taxes on income included in statement of incomepem® current and deferred tax. Current tax is the
expected tax payable on the taxable income foyehe, using tax rates enacted or substantivelytetac
at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment payable in respect of prior years (Note 21).

Deferred income tax is provided for all temporaifyedences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying values for fiméad reporting purposes with the enacted tax rasesf
the balance sheet date (Note 21).

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using ttability method, on all temporary differences arg
between the tax bases of assets and liabilitiesr@dcarrying values in the financial statememesx
bases of assets and liabilities reflect the amoafiesting the future tax bases under the curraxt t
legislation. Deferred income tax is determined gisiax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet datea@néxpected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred indaméability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets or liabilities are oddld to the financial statements to the extent they

will provide an increase or decrease in the taxagslple for the future periods where the temporary
differences will reverse. Deferred income tax lidles are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, where deferred tax assets resultiomg fleductible temporary differences are recognized
to the extent that it is probable that future tdegivofit will be available against which the detible
temporary difference can be utilised. To the exteat deferred income tax assets will not be @iiljs
the related amounts have been deducted accordingly.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitidated to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority are offset accordingly, if current taxsets can be offset against current tax liabilities
(Note 21).

Employee benefits/Provision for employment termindbn benefits

According to the enacted laws, the Company is requio make lump-sum payments to employees
whose employment is terminated due to retirementfoor reasons other than resignation or
misconduct, as stated in Labor Law. Provisions dorployment termination benefits have been
calculated for the net present value of future emplent termination benefits and reflected in the
financial statements (Note 14).

14



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF FINANCIAL S TATEMENTS
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

TURK TRAKTOR VE Z IRAAT MAK INELERI A.S.

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

(Amounts expressed in New Turkish Lira (“YTL”"), @sls otherwise indicated)

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEME NTS (Continued)

Statement of cash flow

The statement of cash flows reports cash flowsnduttie year classified by operating, investing and
financing activities.

Cash flows from operating activities are derivamhirthe principal revenue producing activities a th
Company.

Cash flows related to investing activities représash flows generated from and used in the invgsti
activities (fixed assets and financial investmentdhe Company.

Cash flows related to financing activities représash flows generated from Company’s financing
activities and re-payment of such generated cafliowrs.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in handk teposits and other short-term highly liquid
investments with maturities of three months or.less

Trade receivables and provision for impairment of eceivables

Trade receivables that are created by the Compwanyaly of providing service or goods directly to a
debtor are carried at amortized cost. Short duratiEceivables with no stated interest rate are
measured at original invoice amount unless theceffeimputing interest is significant.

A risk provision for trade receivables is estal#ghf there is objective evidence that the Company
will not be able to collect all amounts due. Theoant of the provision is the difference between the
carrying amount and the recoverable amount, bdiegpresent value of all cash flows, including

amounts recoverable from guarantees and collatfisgipunted based on the original effective interes
rate of the originated receivables at inception.

If the amount of the impairment subsequently desgeadue to an event occurring after the write-
down, the release of the provision is creditedtt@oincome.

Share capital and dividends

Ordinary shares are classified as capital. Dividetidtributed over ordinary shares are recorded by
deducting from retained earnings within the yeawimch they are declared.

2.4  Significant accounting estimates and decisions

Preparation of the financial statements requiresiage of the estimates and judgements affetteng t
amounts of the assets and liabilities as of tharza sheet date and the income and expenses r@corde
through the year and explanations of contingerdtasand liabilities. Estimations and assumptioms ca
differ from actual results in spite of these estiores and assumptions are based on Company
management’s best knowledge.
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NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEME NTS (Continued)
Warranties

Warranty expenses are recorded as a result ofrrapdimaintenance expenses for products produced
and sold, authorised services’ labour and matedats for products under the scope of the warranty
terms without any charge to the customers, initi@intenance costs and estimated costs based on
statistical information for possible future warnaservices and returns of products with respetihéo
products sold during the period (Note 13).

Deferred tax asset

Deferred tax burden is calculated with utmost pbilitg provided that the tax advantage is to be
benefited through taxable profit will be derivedfinure. Deferred income tax assets are recognised
the extent that it is probable that future taxailefit will be available against which the tempgrar
differences can be utilised.

The Company has recognised deferred tax assets 3is December 2008, since it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against aithe temporary differences would be utilised.

NOTE 3 - BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

In the Ordinary General Assembly meeting held oM2rch 2008 based on the authorization of CMB
dated 25 February 2008 and numbered B.02.1.SPK2¥@8197, it was decided to merge the
Company and Trakmak, through transfer of all treetssand liabilities of Trakmak into the Company
as a whole under the framework of Turkish ComméiCiade decree 451 and other related decrees
and Articles 18-20 of Corporate Tax Law.

Decision of the Ordinary General Assembly and trergar agreement dated 27 March 2008 are
registered by the trade registry offices in Ankanaizmir on 31 March 2008.

The method adopted in the business combinatiom@fGompany and Trakmak, was merger over
adjusted equities in accordance with CMB FinanBieporting Standards. Merger ratio based on the
equity method was determined as 88,067% by an armdignt expert firm and by dividing the previous
share capital of the Company amounting to YTL47.000 by the merger ratio, share capital after the
merger has been determined as YTL53.369.000. Timpa@tive balance sheet of the Company as of
31 December 2007 and the statement of income, ellangshareholders’ equity, and cash flows and
the related explanatory notes for the nine-montaisod ended at 30 September 2007 have been
restated to reflect the effects of combining theaficial statements of the Company and Trakmak,
prepared in accordance with the financial reportistandards accepted by the CMB
(Note 2.1).
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NOTE 4 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2008 2007

Banks
- YTL denominated demand deposits 2.018.949 1.807.1
- YTL denominated time deposits 72.740.058 45.062.8
- Foreign currency denominated demand deposits 51288 287.726
- Foreign currency denominated time deposits 39Qr8 860.082
- Other - 1.581

115.684.361 48.041.301

As of 31 December 2008, the weighted average eféeennual interest rate for the YTL, U.S. Dollar
(“USD”) and Euro (“EUR”) time deposits is 16,52%00% and %3,01 (2007: YTL: 18,13%, USD: 3%,
EUR: 2,25%). As of 31 December 2008 and 2007, neimgitime to maturity of time deposits is less
than three months.

The cash and cash equivalents included in thensémieof cash flows at 31 December 2008 and 2007
are as follows:

2008 2007
Banks 115.684.361 48.041.301
Less: Interest accruals (100.032) (124.812)
Less: Restricted bank deposits (135.731) (265.399)
Cash and cash equivalents 115.448.598 47.651.090
NOTE 5 - FINANCIAL ASSETS
Available for sale financial assets:
31 December 2008 31 December 2007
Share YTL Share YTL
Entek Elektrik Uretimi AS. 2,67% 6.541.500 2,67% 4.,809.313

As of 31 December 2008, the fair value of EntekkElk Uretimi A.S has been determined by using
the discounted cash flow method. The availables&be investment of the Company is presented in the
financial statements with its fair value by addthg difference amounting to YTL1.732.187 between
carrying value and fair value to the fair valueer@e account under shareholders’ equity. Discounted
cash flow method used in the valuation is basetherprofit and the balance sheet projections for 10
years and discount rate calculated using the Tutkigo bond yields.
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NOTE 6 - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
a) Short term financial liabilities

Short-term bank borrowings

Original Weighted average effective
currency amount interest rate p.a. (%) YTL Egivalent
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
YTL bank borrowings 164.987.867  13.269.486 23,48 13 164.987.867 13.269.486
EUR bank borrowings 117.059.506 34.703.509 9,06 4,92 250.600.991 59.349.941

415.588.858 72.619.427

Short-term portion of long term bank borrowings

Original Weighted average effective
currency amount interest rate p.a. (%) YTL Egivalent
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
EUR bank borrowings 41.669.840 12.522.438 55 67 4, 89.206.794 21.415.874

89.206.794 21.415.874

Short-term financial lease obligations

Original
currency amount YTL Egivalent
2008 2007 2008 2007
YTL - 108.102 - 108.102
EUR - 24.761 - 42.347
- 150.449
Total short-term financial liabilities 504.795.62 94.185.750
b)  Long-term financial liabilities
Original Weighted average effective
currency amount interest rate p.a. (%) YTL Egivalent
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
EUR bank borrowings 9.640.288 37.500.000 5,66 165, 20.637.929 64.132.500
Total long-term financial liabilities 20.637.929 64.132.500
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NOTE 6 - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

Redemption schedule of the long term bank borrosvagyof 31 December 2008 is as follows:

2008
January 2010 9.358.731
February 2010 11.279.198
20.637.929

Carrying values and fair values of the bank borngsiare as shown below:

Carrying value Fair value

2008 2007 2008 2007
Bank borrowings 525.433.581 158.318.250 538.869.550 1585986.

As of 31 December 2008, fair values of the EUR éftl denominated bank borrowings are determined
by using the discounted cash flow method over dnaverage effective discount rates of 4,32% and
16,26%, respectively (2007: For EUR and YTL bankdwings 4,66% and 18,13% p.a., respectively).

NOTE 7 - OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The Company has obtained forward foreign currengy-lbontracts from banks amounting to
EUR26.250.000 (2007: EUR44.046.000) in order to aganthe foreign currency risk arising from the
bank borrowings amounting to EUR26.250.000 as of 3December 2008
(2007: EUR44.046.000). Since these derivative fir@rnnstruments are assessed to be effective cash
flow hedges, related gains/losses arising from ehfsward transactions are recognised under
shareholders’ equity.

As of 31 December 2008, total contract value of fitvevard foreign currency-buy transactions is
YTL64.343.525 (2007: YTL101.751.859).

Derivative financial instruments

2008 2007
Short-term obligations arising from derivative fitéal instruments  6.131.604 5.201.853
Long-term obligations arising from derivative firdal instruments - 11.154.192
Total obligations arising from derivative financial instruments  6.131.604 16.356.045
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NOTE 7 - OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

2008 2007
Fair Fair
Contract Fair value Contract Fair value
value value  difference value value difference
Forward foreign currency-
buy transactions 64.343.525 58.211.921 (6.131.604) 101.751.859 8339 (16.356.045)

Movements in the hedge reserve during the yeaasashown below:

2008 2007
1 January (13.084.836) -
Increase/(decrease) in the fair value account wfatéve
financial instruments 10.224.441 (16.356.045)
Deferred tax calculated over the increase/(decyease
in the fair value account of derivative finariérestruments (2.044.888) 3.271.209
31 December (4.905.283) (13.084.836)
NOTE 8 - TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES
2008 2007
Short term trade receivables:
Customer current accounts 113.600.059 119.948.887
Notes receivable 95.881.467 66.702.057
Protested notes 6.155.799 1.250.847
Cheques received - 25.318
215.637.325 187.927.109
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables (14.1198)05 (1.714.405)
Unearned financial income (7.686.638) (8.561.199)
Short term trade receivables 193.836.628 177.6515%60

The Company considers its past experience in doipeeceivables when providing provision for
doubtful accounts. The management believes that tleeno further risk of doubtful receivables
except the provision provided.

Movements of the provisions for doubtful receivalfier the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007
are as shown below:

2008 2007
1 January 1.714.405 1.070.157
Provision cancelled during the year - (279.067)
Collections during the year (Note 18) (98.328) (533)
Increase during the year (Note 18) 12.497.982 10680
31 December 14.114.059 1.714.405
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NOTE 8 - TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (Continued)

2008 2007
Long-term trade receivables:
Notes receivable 201.545.324 86.732.146
Less: Unearned financial income (20.528.964) (15.645)
Long-term trade receivables 181.016.360 71.019.501

As of 31 December 2008, weighted average annuattefé interest rate for YTL, EUR and USD
denominated short-term and long-term trade recédgalare 15,83%, 2,68% and 0,77% (2007:
YTL16,28%, EUR 4,70%, USD 4,63%), respectively.

As of 31 December 2008, weighted average annuatt®fé interest rate for YTL, EUR and USD
denominated notes receivables are 16,08%, 3,0198,85680 (2007: YTL 13,52%, EUR 2,47%, USD
4,75%), respectively.

2008 2007
Trade payables:
Supplier current accounts 74.993.571 73.963.480
Less: Unincurred financial expense (559.712) (62B).0
74.433.859 73.348.459

As of 31 December 2008, weighted average annuattefé interest rates for YTL, EUR, USD and
GBP denominated trade payables are 15,83%, 2,84%26%l and 2,67%
(31 December 2007: YTL 16,69%, EUR 4,75%, USD 4,&8% GBP 5,96%), respectively.

NOTE 9 - INVENTORIES

2008 2007
Raw materials 73.741.003 47.612.717
Work in progress 3.954.714 1.500.884
Finished goods 41.008.605 27.529.587
Commercial goods 79.583.074 68.567.151
Spare parts 11.783.174 10.227.324
Goods in transit 66.038.183 17.772.191
276.108.753 173.209.854

Provision for impairment of inventory (999.296) {2889)
275.109.457 172.942.465

The cost of inventories recognised as expense @aeidded in production costs the current year,
amounted to YTL581.443.740 (2007: YTL436.631.734).
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NOTE 9 - INVENTORIES (Continued)

Movement of provision for impairment of inventoryrthg the year is as follows:

2008 2007
1 January (267.389) -
Charge for the year (731.907) (267.389)
31 December (999.296) (267.389)
NOTE 10 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
1 January 2008 Additions Disposals Transfers 31 Bember 2008
Cost
Land 373.095 - - - 373.095
Land improvements 4.367.819 111.859 - - 4.479.678
Buildings 47.797.431 201.763 - 194.103 48.193.297
Machinery and equipment 317.004.923 5.005.669 gRO7Z9) 1.617.330 313.339.143
Special costs 2.614.694 - - - 2.614.694
Motor vehicles 3.124.761 231.626  (694.823) - 2.664.
Furniture and fixtures 19.693.220 1.116.453 (95037 - 20.714.636
Construction in progress 416.300 1.771.351 - 1(1L4833) 376.218
395.392.243  8.438.721 (11.078.639) - 392.752.325
Accumulated depreciation
Land improvements 2.714.198 118.862 - - 2.833.060
Buildings 29.106.848 1.529.244 - - 30.636.092
Machinery and equipment 300.521.054 7.362.556 8B)7Z9) - 297.594.831
Special costs 2.435.777 51.961 - - 2.487.738
Motor vehicles 1.296.845 472.934  (340.153) - 1.826.
Furniture and fixtures 17.381.480 874.947 (95.037) - 18.161.390
353.456.202 10.410.504 (10.723.969) - 353.142.737
Net book value 41.936.041 39.609.588
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NOTE 10 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

1 January 2007 Additions Disposals 31 December@D

Cost
Land 373.095 - - 373.095
Land improvements 4.286.120 81.699 - 4.367.819
Buildings 47.753.132 44.299 - 47.797.431
Machinery and equipment 311.181.579 6.604.815 ). 317.004.923
Special costs 2.525.200 89.494 - 2.614.694
Motor vehicles 2.320.317 1.250.947 (446.503) 3.1a1.
Furniture and fixtures 19.076.857 964.932 (348.569) 19.693.220
Construction in progress 9.388 406.912 - 416.300

387.525.688 9.443.098 (1.576.543) 395.392.243
Accumulated depreciation
Land improvements 2.599.420 114.778 - 2.714.198
Buildings 27.485.289 1.621.559 - 29.106.848
Machinery and equipment 289.654.276 11.643.099 .Bz1§ 300.521.054
Special costs 2.386.213 49.564 - 2.435.777
Motor vehicles 1.172.640 447.702 (323.497) 1.296.84
Furniture and fixtures 16.856.400 867.843 (342.763) 17.381.480

340.154.238 14.744.545 (1.442.581) 353.456.202
Net book value 47.371.450 41.936.041

For the year ended at 31 December 2008, of thel wepreciation expense YTL8.115.353
(2007: YTL12.526.428) is allocated to productiorstsp YTL1.851.380 (2007: YTL1.755.871) is
allocated to general administrative expenses, YBLOES (2007: YTL462.246) is allocated to research
and development expenses and YTL15.715 is allodatethrketting, selling and distribution expenses
(2007: None).

NOTE 11 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS

1 January 2008 Additions Disposals Transfers 31 December 2008
Cost
Rights 4.350.914 218.067 - - 4.568.981
Development costs 512.897 - - 2.079.137 2.592.034
Development costs in progress 1.454.846 3.251.379 (2.079.137) 2.627.088
6.318.657 3.469.446 - - 9.788.103
Accumulated amortisation
Rights 3.718.739 311.118 - - 4.029.857
Development costs - 102.579 - - 102.579
3.718.739 413.697 - - 4.132.436
Net book value 2.599.918 5.655.667
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NOTE 11 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

1 January 2007 Additions Disposals 31 December 2007

Cost

Rights 4.026.886 324.030 - 4.350.916

Development costs in progress - 1.967.743 - 1.967.7
4.026.886 2.291.773 - 6.318.659

Accumulated amortisation

Rights 3.410.479 308.262 - 3.718.741
3.410.479 308.262 - 3.718.741

Net book value 616.407 2.599.918

Development costs includes intangible assets ¢atestby the Company. Capitalised development
costs are recorded as intangible assets and aetbft@am the point at which the asset is ready & u
The amortisation is not calculated for the develeptcosts in progress.

For the year ended at 31 December 2008, of thel tmt@ortisation expenses YTL242.527
(2007: YTL166.425) is allocated to production co3t$L55.798 (2007: YTL135.695) is allocated to
general administrative expenses and YTL115.372 {200rL6.142) is allocated to research and
development expenses.

NOTE 12 - OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

2008 2007

a) Other current assets:
Deferred value added tax (“VAT") 27.844.205 18. 87
Deductable VAT 19.602.813 1.696.292
Prepaid taxes 4.128.050 -
Reclaimed corporate tax (*) 186.951 -
Prepaid expenses 160.523 565.451
Other 419.184 50.835

52.341.726 20.565.405

* Reclaimed corporate tax amounting to YTL188.9epresents the corporate tax that Trakmak oiceipa
the year 2007 before the merge and asked for thaddrom the related tax office.

2008 2007
b)  Other non-current assets:
Deposits and guarantees given 389.185 708.999
Prepaid expenses 433 865
389.618 709.864
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NOTE 12 - OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

2008 2007
c) Other short term liabilities:
Deferred income (*) 6.087.574 7.898.250
Taxes, funds and other related payable 3.260.609 200357
Payables to personnel 1.666.618 1.837.073
Advances received - 311.238
Other 2.549.571 1.580.616
13.564.372 14.827.534

(*) Deferred income amounting to YTL6.087.574 ig thales amount of the tractors for which the ingpic

are issued but are not yet shipped to customers 2 December 2008.

NOTE 13 - PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CO NTINGENT ASSETS

a) Provisions

2008 2007

Warranty provisions 9.997.787 9.494.108
Provision for lawsuits (*) 1.754.149 1.593.980
Other provisions 608.099 320.706
12.360.035 11.408.794

(*) There are various ongoing lawsuits where theomPany is either claimant or litigant.
These lawsuits are mainly related with the coltattiof the receivables and labour. As of
31 December 2008, the Company has provided provisiothese lawsuits in accordance with the advice
of the legal counsel, amounting to YTL1.754.14%hiese financial statements.

The movements of provision for warranty expensemduhe year are as follows:

2008 2007
1 January 9.494.108 8.426.593
Charge for the year 503.679 1.067.515
31 December 9.997.787 9.494.108
The movement of provision for lawsuits during tlearis as follows:

2008 2007
1 January 1.593.980 257.523
Released during the year - (257.523)
Charge for the year (Note 18) 160.169 1.593.980
31 December 1.754.149 1.593.980
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NOTE 13 - PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS
(Continued)

The movement of other provisions during the yeasifollows:

2008 2007
1 January 320.706 257.353
Released during the year (320.706) (257.353)
Charge for the year 608.099 320.706
31 December 608.099 320.706

b) Contingent Liabilities

The commitments and contingent liabilities whick apbt expected to cause material loss or debts by
the Company are summarized below:

2008 2007
Letters of guarantee given 11.355.505 26.558.170
Letters of bail given (*) 7.340.155 8.054.402
18.695.660 34.612.572

(*) The Company has signed guarantee agreemadttisAkbank T.AS. and Denizbank A. for the bank
borrowings amounting to EUR3.428.697 used by onisofustomers, Mega Otomotiv Zirai Aletler ve
Konfeksiyon San. Tic. LtdSti. (“Mega Otomotiv”). The beneficiary and the ajdtory of these bank
borrowings is Mega Otomotiv.

c) Contingent Assets

2008 2007
Letters of guarantees received 139.435.262 11%325.
Security bonds 1.550.000 7.541.107
Mortgages 1.335.480 1.517.490
Foreign currency guarantees in cash 11.960 195.877
142.332.702 128.630.116
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NOTE 14 - PROVISION FOR EMPLOYMENT TERMINATION BENE FITS

2008 2007
Provision for employment termination benefits 7.904 7.475.590
7.573.991 7.475.590

Provision for employee termination benefit is remat in line with the legal arrangements explained
below:

Under the Turkish Labour Law, the Company is regglito pay termination benefits to each employee
who has completed one year of service and whoséogment is terminated without due cause, or who
is called up for military service, dies or retiedter completing 25 years of service (20 yearsMomen)
and achieves the retirement age (58 for women @ridrénen).

The amount payable consists of one month’s sailaiteld to a maximum of YTL2.173,19 for each year
of service as of 31 December 2008 (2007: YTL2.030,1

The liability is not funded, as there is no fundimguirement. The provision has been calculated by
estimating the present value of the future probabligation of the Company arising from the retisgrn
of the employees.

Communigué require actuarial valuation methods ¢o developed to estimate the enterprises’
obligation under defined benefit plans. Accordindhe following actuarial assumptions were used in
the calculation of the total liability:

2008 2007
Discount rate (%) 6,26 571
Turnover rate to estimate the probability of retiest (%) 96,84 97,74

The principal assumption is that the maximum ligbfbr each year of service will increase in lwéh
inflation. Thus, the discount rate applied represahe expected real rate after adjusting for the
anticipated effects of future inflation. The maximamount of YTL2.260,05 which is effective from
1 January 2009 (1 January 2008: YTL2.087,92) has lteken into consideration in calculating the
provision for employment termination benefits aé thompany.

Movements of the provision for employment termioatbenefits during the year are as follows:

2008 2007
1 January 7.475.590 8.191.241
Increase during the year (Note 17) 1.384.747 122741 .
Paid during the year (1.286.346) (1.936.866)
31 December 7.573.991 7.475.590
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NOTE 15 - SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Share Capital
The Company’s registered share capital amountdt%0.000.000 (2007: YTL250.000.000).

Companies in Turkey, may exceed the registeredestapital if they issue bonus shares to present
shareholders.

The composition of the Company’s statutory shap#taieat 31 December 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

2008 2007
Participation Amount Participation Amount
(%) (YTL) (%) (YTL)
Kog¢ Holding 37,7 20.132.794 37,7 20.132.794
CNH Trade N.V. (“CNH") 37,5 20.013.375 37,5 20.8%
Temel Ticaret AS. 2,1 1.114.575 2,1 1.114.575
Public quotation 22,0 11.747.963 22,0 11.747.963
Other 0,7 360.293 0,7 360.293
100,0 53.369.000 100,0 53.369.000
Adjustments to share capital 39.014.356 39.014.356
92.383.356 92.383.356

Adjustments to share capital represent the difierelbetween the total amounts of cash and cash
equivalent additions to share capital which areistdd for inflation and not adjusted for inflation.

As of 28 November 2005, the shares of the Compaaydamaterialized and in accordance with the
Communiqué No: 1V-28 regarding “Principles and Rahares for the Recording of Dematerialized
Capital Market Instruments”, shares paid to therdreavere made shares paid to the name. The
Company'’s shares were organized as A, B and C Grdupnd B Group shares are privilege shares, and
the Board members are selected from the privilegessowners.

As of 3 - 4 June 2004, the Company has been quofistanbul Stock Exchangel8E”) and its shares

started to be traded in the stock exchange matisetf 31 December 2008, 22% (2007: 22%) of the
Company shares have been quoted iri$ie
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NOTE 15 - SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (Continued)

The method adopted in the business combinatioheofCompany and Trakmak, was merger over the
adjusted equities in accordance with CMB FinanRigporting Standards. The capital structure of the
Company is rearranged accordingly (Note 3) andgshiae capital of the Company was increased from
YTL47.000.000 to YTL53.369.000 after the mergercoysidering the relative ratios of shareholders’
equity and nominal capitals of these two companige Company owned 5.336.900.000 units of
shares with a face value of 1 YKr each.

Retained Earnings, Restricted Profit Reserves, FaiValue Reserves, and Other Capital Reserves

The legal reserves consist of first and secondrvesgappropriated in accordance with the Turkish
Commercial Code (“TCC"). The TCC stipulates thag fiirst legal reserve is appropriated out of

statutory profits at the rate of 5% per annum, |uhg total reserve reaches 20% of the Company’s
paid-in capital. The second legal reserve is appatgd at the rate of 10% per annum of all cash
distributions in excess of 5% of the paid-in cdpitlder the TCC, the legal reserves can be uskd on

to offset losses and are not available for anyrotisage unless they exceed 50% of paid-in capital.
These amounts are classified as “Restricted pegitrves” according to the CMB Financial Reporting

Standards.

In accordance with the CMB requirements effectivehie previous years, the inflation adjustment
differences arising at the initial application afflation accounting which are recorded under
“accumulated losses” could be netted off from thefipto be distributed based on CMB profit
distribution regulations. In addition, the aforertiened amount recorded under “accumulated losses
could be netted off with net income for the ye&gariy, undistributed prior year profits, and iniet
adjustment differences of extraordinary reseneazglireserves and capital, respectively.

In addition, in accordance with the CMB regulati@ifective until 1 January 2008, “Capital, Share
Premiums, Legal Reserves, Special Reserves anddfdinary Reserves” were recorded at their
statutory carrying amounts and the inflation adpestt differences related to such accounts were
recorded under “inflation adjustment differences”tlze initial application of inflation accounting.
“Equity inflation adjustment differences” could lebeen utilised in issuing bonus shares and
offsetting accumulated losses, carrying amountxtfaerdinary reserves could have been utilised in
issuing bonus shares, cash dividend distributi@hadfsetting accumulated losses.

In accordance with the Communiqué No:XI-29 andteelaannouncements of CMB, effective from

1 January 2008, “Share capital”, “Restricted Resg€hand “Share Premiums” shall be carried at their
statutory amounts. The valuation differences (sashinflation adjustment differences) shall be
disclosed as follows:

- If the difference is due to the inflation adjustrhef “share capital” and not yet been transfered
to capital should be classified under “AdjusmentShare Capital”;

- If the difference is due to the inflation adjustmeh“Restricted Reserves” and “Share Premium”
and the amount has not been utilised in dividestridution or capital increase yet, it shall be
classified under “Retained Earnings”.

Other equity items shall be carried at the amouwatsulated based on CMB Financial Reporting
Standards.
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NOTE 15 - SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (Continued)

Capital adjustment differences have no other userahan being transferred to share capital.

Based on the CMB Decree 4/138 dated 8 January 20d8effective from 1 January 2008, the
minimum profit distribution rate is determined te B0% (2007: 20%) for the quoted entities at the
stock exchange. The above mentioned distributioradcordance with the decision of the General
Assembly, can be made as cash or as bonus shaaesaarombination of a certain percentage of cash
and bonus shares. It is also permitted to retaig dmount in the Company reserves if the first
dividend amount is below 5% of the paid in/issuagit@l; however if the Company has increased its
paid-in capital without dividend distribution indhprevious year, it is mandatory to make the first
dividend distribution in cash for the companiestthéll make profit distribution out of the net
distributable profit of the year 2007.

The Company’s shareholders’ equity as of 31 Decer@d@8 and 2007 is as follows:

2008 2007

Share capital 53.369.000 53.369.000
Adjustments to share capital 39.014.356 39.014.356
Fair value reserves 3.634.098 1.988.520
Hedge reserve (4.905.283) (13.084.836)
Merger reserve (5.569.000) (5.569.000)
Restricted profit reserves 56.617.017 47.452.017
Retained earnings 76.601.061 87.039.298
Net profit for the year 66.791.556 92.726.763
Total shareholders’ equity 285.552.805 302.93641
NOTE 16 - SALES AND COST OF SALES

1 January - 1 January -

31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Domestic sales 533.150.083 526.650.005
Export sales 316.816.734 186.739.794

849.966.817 713.389.799
Less : Discounts and returns (62.475.791) (72.4%).6
Net sales 787.491.026 640.899.127
Cost of sales (649.306.626) (492.036.010)
Gross profit 138.184.400 148.863.117
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NOTE 17 - RESARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES, MARKETI NG, SELLING AND
DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES, GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPEN SES

1 January -

1 January -

31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Marketing, selling and distribution expenses:

Warranty expenses 11.266.733 11.275.139
Personnel expenses 9.032.349 7.264.907
Service expenses 3.220.313 1.711.688
Travel expenses of sales personnel 2.620.995 307892
Advertisement expenses 2.496.786 1.794.641
Transportation expenses 1.997.797 1.548.698
Fair expenses 1.172.347 1.340.260
Outsource expenses 995.450 1.351.841
Rent expenses 967.006 904.357
Remuneration of key management personnel (Notg 23.v 400.591 109.753
Depreciation and amortisation (Note 10,11) 15.715 -
Provision for employment termination benefits exgan(**) (122.541) -
Other 280.903 150.435
34.344.444 29.759.411
1 January - 1 January -

31 December 2008 31 December 2007

General administrative expenses:

Personnel expenses 7.302.523 5.244.350
Repair, maintenance and energy expenses 2.686.34 2.361.595
Service expenses paid to shareholders 2.453.131 1.681.973
Taxes and other legal expense 2.155.105 1.797.23
Depreciation and amortisation (Note 10,11) 1.903 1.891.566
Remuneration of key management personnel (Notg 23.v 1.609.545 2.307.088
Outsource expenses 1.174.300 859.390
Donations and aids 1.029.740 2.104.025
Service expenses 870.011 728.768
Provision expense for lawsuits 746.908 941.409
Provision for employment termination benefits exgen(**) 586.023 397.514
Representation and travel expenses 544.116 5.6
Colsultancy and training expenses 330.697 383.03
Other 1.295.685 1.627.319
24.691.311 22.930.964
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NOTE 17 - RESARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES, MARKETI NG, SELLING AND
DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES, GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPEN SES
(Continued)

Research and development expenses:

1 January - 1 January -
31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Personnel expenses 1.215.323 1.552.350
Depreciation and amortisation (Note 10,11) 543.428 444113
Remuneration of key management personnel (Notg 23.v 175.746 803.798
Project expenses 116.697 101.189
Material expenses 115.999 55.219
Provision for employment termination benefits exgan(**) 30.714 2.571
Travel expenses 16.175 102.113
Service expenses 13.668 24.735
Other 702.460 185.620
2.930.210 3.271.708

(*) The amount of renumeration of key managemeetspnnel allocated to production costs is
YTL1.316.415 (2007: YTL842.962).

(**) The amount of provision for employment termiimem benefit expenses allocated to production cissts
YTL890.551(2007: YTL821.130).

NOTE 18 - OTHER OPERATING INCOME/EXPENSES

1 January - 1 January -
31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Gain on sales of property, plant and equipment 3. 94.594
Commission income 176.905 -
Termination of provision for doubtful receivablésofe 8) 98.328 575.687
Other various income 936.236 732.747
Other operating income 1.574.190 1.403.028
Provision for allowance for doubtful receivable{dl 8) (12.497.982) (1.499.002)
Provision for lawsuits (Note 13) (160.169) (1.580p
Loss on sales of property, plant and equipment 20.6 (419)
Other (435.276) (57.486)
Other operating expenses (13.095.054) (3.150.887)
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NOTE 19 - FINANCIAL INCOME
1 January - 1 January -
31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Foreign exchange gain 148.764.518 32.710.523
Financial income from credit sales 83.304.378 B.911

Interest income 7.286.889 9.022.875
Financial income 239.355.785 95.749.969

NOTE 20 - FINANCIAL EXPENSES
1 January - 1 January -
31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Foreign exchange loss (155.571.788) (30.322.792)
Financial expense on credit purchases (30.449.763)  (23.459.806)
Interest expenses of bank borrowings (34.519.310) 15.8¢8.884)
Other (808.857) (1.570.443)
Financial expenses (221.349.718) (71.181.925)

NOTE 21 - TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Corporation and income taxes payable 17.086.228 8025714
Less: Prepaid taxes (17.086.228) (22.030.902)
Total tax payable - net - 3.773.812

1 January - 1 January -

31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Current year corporate tax expense (17.086.228) (25.804.714)
Deferred tax income 1.174.146 2.810.258
Tax expense (15.912.082) (22.994.456)

The Corporate Tax Law was amended by Law No.5528ddE3 June 2006. Most of the articles of the
new Corporate Tax Law in question, N0.5520, hasecamo force effective from 1 January 2006.
Corporation tax is payable, at a rate of 20% (2@0®) on the total income of the companies
registered in Turkey after adjusting for certaisalliowable expenses, exempt income and investment
and other allowances (e.g. R&D allowance). No ferttax is payable unless the profit is distributed
(except for withholding tax at the rate of 19,8%lcalated on an exemption amount if an investment
allowance is granted in the scope of Income Tax teamporary article 61).
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NOTE 21 - TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

Dividends paid to non-resident corporations, whiectve a place of business in Turkey, or resident
corporations are not subject to withholding taxhévise, dividends paid are subject to withholding
tax at the rate of 15% (2007: 15%). An increaseqjpital via issuing bonus shares is not considased
a profit distribution and thus does not incur withting tax.

Corporations are required to pay advance corparasiv quarterly at the rate of 20% (2007: 20%) on
their corporate income. Advance tax is payable ey 17th of the second month following each
calendar quarter end. Advance tax paid by corpmratis credited against the annual corporation tax
liability. If, despite offsetting, there remaingaid advance tax amount, it may be refunded oebffs
against other liabilities to the government.

There is no such application for the reconciliatafpayable taxes with the tax authority. Corporate
tax returns are submitted to the related tax offigehe 25th day of the fourth month following the
month when the accounting year ends.

In tax reviews authorized bodies can review theaoting records for the past five years and ifmsrro
are detected, tax amounts may change due to tegsamssnt.

According to Turkish tax legislation, financial &&s on the returns can be offset against period
income for up to 5 years. However, financial logsmsnot be offset against previous years’ profits.

There are many exemptions in Corporate Tax Lawrd#gg corporations. Those concerning the
Company are explained as follows:

Dividends obtained from Turkish resident corponasioexcept dividends from investment funds
participation certificates and investment partngsihares are exempt from corporate tax.

75% of the gains derived from the sale of prefeatnghts, usufruct shares and founding shares fro
investment equity and real property which has reewiin assets for more than two full years are
exempt from corporate tax. To be entitled to thenation, the relevant gain is required to be held i
a fund account in the liabilities and it must netwithdrawn from the entity for a period of 5 years
The cost of the sale has to be collected up untilend of the second calendar year following thae ye
the sale was realized.

Brokerage houses and real estate companies wliealiag with trading and leasing of real estate can
not benefit from this exemption.

Accordingly, gains with the above nature which amethe profit/loss figures are taken into
consideration, in the calculation of corporate tax.

Apart from the above mentioned exceptions in therd@nation of the corporate tax base, allowances
cited in the articles 8, 9 and 10 of Corporate LTaw and article 40 of Income Tax Law are taken into
consideration.

Deferred Taxes:

The Company recognizes deferred income tax basedl temporary differences arising between the

tax bases of assets and liabilities and their gagryalues in the financial statements prepared in
accordance with the Communiqué, using the curreathcted tax rates. The currently enacted tax rate
for temporary differences is 20% (2007: 20%).
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NOT 21 - TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

The breakdown of cumulative temporary differences #he resulting deferred tax assets/(liabilitigts)
31 December 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

Deferred tax

Temporary differences assets/(liabilities)
2008 2007 2008 2007

Net differences between carrying

amounts and tax bases of property, plant

and equipment and intangible assets 807.674 188.234 (161.535) (37.647)
Unearned finance income on due

from related parties (404.540) (1.127.868) 88.90 225.574
Provision for employment termination

benefits (7.573.991) (7.475.590) 1.514.798 495.118
Capitalized unincurred financial expense

on inventory (622.126) (804.519) 124.425 260.
Fair value differences on financial assets 3.8%5.35 2.093.179 (191.268) (104.659)
Warranty provision (9.997.787) (9.494.108) D.9%7 1.898.822
Provision for lawsuits (1.754.149) (1.593.980) 350.830 318.796
Unearned finance income on trade

receivables (6.492.122) (6.457.631) 1.298.424 1.291.526
Provision for doubtful receivables (7.988.958) gua7l) 1.597.792 305.834
Derivative financial instruments

fair value differences (6.131.604) (16.356.045) 1.226.321 3.271.209
Retailers premiums (280.031) - 56.006 -
Provision for impairment of inventory (999.296) 28389) 199.859 53.479
Other provisions (608.099) (320.706) 121.619 4.161
Elemination of profit margin of the sales

to free zone branch (1.500.021) (1.855.965) 0.Gw5 371.193
Other 1.587.742 783.720 (317.548) (156.744)
Deferred tax assets 8.200.194 9.157.545

Movements of deferred tax assets during the yeaasifollows:

2008 2007
1 January 9.157.545 3.076.078
Deferred tax income 1.174.146 2.810.258
Charged to fair value reserve (86.609) -
Charged to hedge reserve (2.044.888) 3.271.209
31 December 8.200.194 9.157.545

NOTE 22 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share stated in the income statersecélculated by dividing the net income to the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outsiguadring the year.

Companies can increase their share capital by makijpro-rata distribution of shares (“Bonus Shagres”
to existing shareholders from statutory retainechiegs and statutory revaluation surplus. For the
purpose of earnings per share computations, thghteel average number of shares in existence during
the year has been adjusted in respect of bonus ssaies without a corresponding change in ressurce
by giving them retroactive effect for the year ihigh they were issued and each earlier year.
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NOTE 22 - EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividhegnet income attributable to shareholders by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

1 January -

1 January -

31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Net profit for the year 66.791.556 92.726.763
Weighted average number of the ordinary shares 36980.000 5.336.900.000
Earnings per share (in full YTL per share) 0,0125 0,0174
There is no difference between basic and dilutediegs per share in any periods.
NOTE 23 - RELATED PARTY EXPLANATIONS
i) Balances with related parties as of 31 December 28®@nd 2007:
2008 2007
a) Bank deposits
Yapi ve Kredi Bankas! A. (“Yap! Kredi") 39.504.246 14.918.839
39.504.246 14.918.839
b)  Due from related parties
CNH Trade N.V. (“CNH") 81.404.378 52.596.471
Yap! Kredi Finansal Kiralama A.O. (“Yap! Kredi Fimsal Kiralama”) 986.264 2.744.572
Fiat India PVT. LTD 907.154 -
CNH Italy SPA (“CNH ltaly”) 730.003 786.797
CNH France S.A (“CNH France”) 338.710 234.526
Harranova Besi ve Tarim 8. 241.400 216.761
New Holland India Ag 133.987 111.456
Fiat Group Purchasing SRL 124.290 -
Otokoc¢ Otomotiv Tic ve San A. (“Otoko¢”) 53.980 109.056
Beldeyama Motorlu Vasitalar Sanayi ve Ticaref.A*Beldeyama”) - 804.041
Other 244.378 166.761
85.164.544 57.770.441
Less: Unaccrued financial income (404.540) (296).995
84.760.004 57.473.446

As of 31 December 2008, weighted average annuattefé interest rates for YTL, EUR and USD due
from related party balances are 15,83%, 2,69% and%® (2007: YTL 16,28%, EUR 4,39%, USD

4,63%), respectively and their maturity is 2 mon{307: 2 months) on average.
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NOTE 23 - RELATED PARTY EXPLANATIONS (Continued)

2008 2007

c) Due to related parties

CNH 33.779.543 14.817.987
Zer Merkezi Hizmetler ve Ticaret 8. (“Zer”) 2.171.539 403.679
Kog¢ Holding 933.923 614.128
Opet Petrolclltk A. (“Opet”) 712.487 741.804
Koc Sistem Bilgi vdletisim Hizmetleri AS. (“Kog Sistem”) 315.164 77.442
Opet Fuchs Madeni ¥aSanayi ve Ticaret A. 134.838 39.610
Setur Servis Turistik &. (“Setur”) 105.162 28.874
Otokog 62.650 25.666
Kogtas Yap! Marketleri AS. 60.652 47.851
Palmira Turizm Ticaret A. (“Palmira”) 42.858 227.124
Koc Net Haberlgme Teknolojileri veletisim Hizmetleri AS.

(“Kog Net”) 41.877 52.582
Kog Allianz Sigorta AS. (“Kog Allianz Sigorta”) 16.333 9.511
CNH ltaly 4.605 557.165
Ram Sigorta Aracilik Hiz. A. (“Ram Sigorta”) - 357.050
Akpa Dayanikli Tiiketim LPG ve Akaryakit Uriinleri

Pazarlama A. (“Akpa”) - 72.603
Aygaz AS. - 17.768
Ford Otomotiv Sanayi A. (“Ford Otomotiv”) - 80.716
Other 67.518 499.598

38.449.149 18.671.158
Less: Unaccrued financial expenses (354.293) (209.456)
38.094.856 18.461.702

As of 31 December 2008, weighted average annuattefé interest rates for YTL and EUR due to
related party balances are 15,83% and 2,91% (20DZ:16,28%, EUR 4,39%), respectively and their

maturity is 3 months (2007 : 3 months) on average.

i) Significant sales and purchases transactions i related parties for the periods between

1 January - 31 December 2008 and 2007

1 January-

1 January-

31 December 2008 31 December 2007

a) Product sales to related parties

CNH 302.218.299 180.870.882
CNH ltaly 5.122.203 4.687.370
Yap! Kredi Finansal Kiralama 2.946.119 19.164.061
Zer 873.410 -
Beldeyama 30.996 2.722.028
Other 8.786.162 2.245.536
319.977.189 209.689.877
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NOTE 23 - RELATED PARTY EXPLANATIONS (Continued)

1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2008 31 December 2007

b)  Otherincome from related parties

CNH 297.293 32.702
Palmira 42.928 56.763
Other 39.991 90.117
380.212 179.582
c) Product purchases from related parties
CNH 49.800.931 70.768.261
Opet 7.502.714 4.928.440
Akpa 1.786.591 682.698
CNH ltaly 1.077.513 2.751.239
CNH France 649.127 115.985
Kog Sistem 494.425 610.719
Ford Otomotiv 111.191 1.264.573
Bos Oksijen (*) - 97.309
Other 1.309.716 714.882
62.732.208 81.934.106

(*) The Company has excluded purchases from Bogj@kBom purchases from related parties clasdifica
following Ko¢ Holding'’s sale of its Bos Oksijen ska to Linde Group on 17 July 2007.

1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2008 31 December 2007

d)  Service purchases from related parties

Ram Sigorta 4.863.879 919.768
Zer 4.502.839 2.230.213
Setur 2.090.250 1.900.845
Ko¢ Holding 1.556.812 1.388.066
Otokog (*) 1.339.046 1.226.098
CNH ltaly 1.201.089 1.189.016
Palmira 1.139.882 1.398.047
Vehbi Ko¢ Vakfi 1.000.000 2.051.515
Kog¢ Holding Emekli Sangi ve Vakfi 738.137 1.853.510
Opet 558.530 566.169
Kog Net 542.489 536.799
Kog Sistem 321.089 336.559
Kog Allianz Sigorta 64.777 139.638
Other 273.542 382.878

20.192.361 16.119.121

(**) Otokoc¢ and Birmot merged under the commerciame Otoko¢ Otomotiv Ticaret ve SanaySAon 30

November 2007.

Service rendered from Ko¢ Holding and CNH ltaly redlated with human resources, strategy

development and consultancy.
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NOTE 23 - RELATED PARTY EXPLANATIONS (Continued)

iii)  Financial income and expenses arising from trasactions with related parties for the
periods between 1 January - 31 December 2008 and20

1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Interest Income

Yapi Kredi 1.773.099 2.222.170

1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Interest expense

Yapi Kredi 719.175 -

iv)  Dividends paid to related parties:

1 January - 1 January -
31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Kog¢ Holding 35.460.335 40.125.000
CNH 35.250.000 40.125.000
Public quotation 20.691.948 26.745.364
Temel Ticaret AS. 1.963.126 -
Other 634.591 4.636
94.000.000 107.000.000

V) Other income and expenses arising from transadns with related parties for the periods
between 1 January - 31 December 2008 and 2007:

1 January- 1 January-
31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Renumeration of Board of Directors and
key management personnel 3.502.297 4.063.601
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NOTE 24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND NATURE AND EXT ENT OF RISK ARISING
FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company’s activities expose it to a varietyfiodncial risks, including the effects of changes i
debt and equity market prices, foreign currencyhexrge rates and interest rates. The Company’'s
overall risk management program focuses on theeadgnbility of financial markets and seeks to
minimize potential adverse effects on the finanp&formance of the Company.

Risk management is carried out in accordance wighprogram set by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

a) Market Risk

Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risksidiin the impact of rate changes on translatian int
YTL of foreign currency denominated assets andlii@s, resulted from the commercial activitiesthwi
the foreign companies. These risks are monitorgdlady and limited by analyses of the foreign

currency position. The Company also utilizes dénreafinancial instruments to the extent necesdary,
minimize the foreign currency risk.
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NOTE 24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND NATURE AND EXT ENT OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Con tinued)
The amounts of foreign currency assets, liabiliéied YTL equivalents of the Company as of 31 Dea2008 and 2007 are as follows:

2008
YTL Equivalent usb EUR GBP DKK CHF JPY

Trade Receivables 172.883.415 1.494.152 79.685.885 10.382 33.083
Monetary Financial Assets (Including cash, bankeants) 40.925.354 10.776.237 11.504.321 - -
Non-monetary Financial Assets - - - - - - -
Other - - - - - - -
Current Assets 213.808.769 12.270.389 91.190.206 10.382 33.083
Trade Receivables 165.051.139 68.040 77.049.814 - - - -
Monetary Financial Assets - - - - - -
Non-monetary Financial Assets - - - - - - -
Other - - - - - - -
Non-current Assets 165.051.139 68.040 77.049.814 - - - -
Total Assets 378.859.908 12.338.429 168.240.020 10.382 33.083 -
Trade Payables 97.475.377 10.258.246 38.168.051 60.989 160.874 431.1 4.189.906
Financial Liabilities 345.939.389 - 161.593.510 - - - -
Other Monetary Liabilities 560.703 158.802 136.428 12.991 - - -
Other Non-monetary Liabilities - - - - - - -
Short-term Liabilities 443.975.469 10.417.048 199.897.989 73.980 160.874 1431 4.189.906
Trade Payables - - - - - - -
Financial Liabilities 20.637.929 - 9.640.288 - - - -
Other Monetary Liabilities - - - - - - -
Other Non-monetary Liabilities - - - - - - -
Long-term Liabilities 20.637.929 - 9.640.288 - - - -
Total Liabilities 464.613.398 10.417.048 209.538.277 73.980 160.874 1431 4.189.906
Total Amount of Hedged Assets 56.196.000 - 26.250.000 - - - -
Total Amount of Hedged Liabilities - - - - - - -
Net Asset/(Liability) Position of Off-balance Sheet

Derivative Instruments 56.196.000 - 26.250.000 - - - -
Net Foreign Currency Asset/(Liability) Position (29557.490) 1.921.381 (15.048.257) (63.598) (127.791) (1.143) (4.189.906)
Net Monetary Foreign Currency Asset/(Liability) Postion (85.753.490) 1.921.381 (41.298.257) (63.598) (127.791) (1.143) (4.189.906)
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NOTE 24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND NATURE AND EXT ENT OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Con tinued)
YTL Equivalent UsD EUR GBP JPY

Trade Receivables 100.322.946 524.376 58.304.412 - -
Monetary Financial Assets (Including cash, bankeaots 1.147.808 319.910 453.286 - -
Non-monetary Financial Assets - - - - -
Other - - - - -
Current Assets 101.470.754 844.286 58.757.698 - -
Trade Receivables 65.057.930 - 38.041.124 - -
Monetary Financial Assets - - - - -
Non-monetary Financial Assets - - - - -
Other - - - - -
Non-current Assets 65.057.930 - 38.041.124 - -
Total Assets 166.528.684 844.286 96.798.822 - -
Trade Payables 65.980.200 148.215 38.380.027 66.424 1.510.200
Financial liabilities 86.010.015 - 50.292.372 - -
Other Monetary Liabilities 11.346 - 6.634 - -
Other Non-monetary Liabilities - - - - -
Short-term Liabilities 152.001.561 148.215 88.679.033 66.424 1.510.200
Trade Payables - - - - -
Financial Liabilities 75.286.692 44.022.156
Other Monetary Liabilities - - - - -
Other Non-monetary Liabilities - - - - -
Long-term Liabilities 75.286.692 - 44.022.156 - -
Total Liabilities 227.288.253 148.215 132.701.189 66.424 1.510.200
Total Amount of Hedged Assets 75.327.470 - 44.046.000 - -
Total Amount of Hedged Liabilities - - - - -
Net Asset/(Liability) Position of Off-balance Sheet

Derivative Instruments 75.327.470 - 44.046.000 - -
Net Foreign Currency Asset/(Liability) Position 14567.901 696.071 8.143.633 (66.424) (1.510.200)
Net Monetary Foreign Currency Asset/(Liability) Postion (60.759.569) 696.071 (35.902.367) (66.424) 1.5(10.200)
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NOTE 24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND NATURE AND EXT ENT OF RISK ARISING
FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The import and export amounts of the Company feryars ended on 31 December 2008 and 2007
are as follows:

1 January - 1 January -
31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Total export amount 316.816.734 186.739.794
Total import amount 226.293.539 209.677.722

As of 31 December 2008 and 2007, percentage ofitngdd total foreign currency liabilities through
receivables from derivative financial assets arlews:

2008 2007

Percentage of hedging of total foreign currendyiliiges 12% 35%

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange rigkauily with respect to EUR and USD. The effect
of the Company’s EUR and USD foreign currency posias of 31 December 2008 and 2007 under
the assumption of the appreciation and depreciatfoiTL against other currencies by 5% with all
other variables held constant, is as follows:

2008
Profit/Loss Shareholders’ Equity
Appreciation of Depreciation of ~ Appreciation of Depeciation of
foreign currency  foreign currency  foreign currency  foreign currency

Had YTL appreciate/(depreciate) by 5%

against USD
Profit/(loss) from USD net asset position 145.285 145285)
Hedged amount against USD risk (-) - -
Net Effect of USD 145.285 (145.285)
Had YTL appreciate/(depreciate) by 5%

against EUR
Profit/(loss) from EUR net liability position (4.42001) 4.114.001 - -
Hedged amount against EUR risk (-) - - 2.809.800 .802.800)
Net Effect of EUR (4.114.001) 4.114.001 2.809.800 (2.809.800)
Total Net Effect (3.968.716) 3.968.716 2.809.800 (2.809.800)
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NOTE 24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND NATURE AND EXT ENT OF RISK ARISING
FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

2007
Profit/Loss Shareholders’ Equity
Appreciation of Depreciation of  Appreciation of Depeciation of
foreign currency  foreign currency  foreign currency  foreign currency

Had YTL appreciate/(depreciate) by 5%
against USD

Profit/(loss) from USD net asset position 40.536 0.%36)
Hedged amount against USD risk (-) - -
Net Effect of USD 40.536 (40.536)
Had YTL appreciate/(depreciate) by 5%

against EUR
Profit/(loss) from EUR net liability position (3.0011) 3.070.011 - -
Hedged amount against EUR risk (-) - 3.039.538 .038.538)
Net Effect of EUR (3.070.011) 3.070.011 3.039.538 (3.039.538)
Total Net Effect (3.029.475) 3.029.475 3.039.538 (3.039.538)

Price Risk

As the equity investments classified under findnassets of the Company are not quoted in an active
market, the Company is not exposed to price risk

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Company has no interest-bearing debt withreble interest rate, the Company is not exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk. However, borroveingsued at fixed rates expose the Company to fair
value interest rate risk and these exposures anaged by using natural hedges by offsetting interes
rate sensitive assets and liabilities.

b)  Credit Risk

Financial assets are in hand carrying the riskhef inability of fulfilling the requirements of the
agreements by the counter parties. . The Compamagesment manages these risks by limiting the
average risk to any individual counterparty, byaifihg guarantees where necessary. The Company
limits these risks that may arise from its dealbns restricting the credit limits determined foeth
dealers according to the amount of the guaranteesived, by updating the guarantee amounts
regularly and by receiving the pledge of ownersbiighe tractors sold. Credit limits are regularly
monitored by the Company and the customers’ ciaqfitity are regularly evaluated by considering
the customers’ financial position, past experierenes other factors. Trade receivables are evaluated
by the management of the Company depending on et experiences and current economic
conditions and are presented in financial statesneeit of provision for doubtful receivables (Noje 8
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NOTE 24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND NATURE AND EXT ENT OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Con tinued)

b)  Credit risk (Continued)

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk a8bDecember 2008 and 2007 is as follows:

2008
Trade Receivables Other Receivables
Related Third Related Third Bank Derivative
Party Party Party Party Deposits  Instruments  Other(*)

Net book value of financial assets which are undue

and not impaired 56.522.358 314.471.183 - - 115.684.361 - -
Net book value of restructured financial assetsemtise that

will be considered as due dated or impaired - 28.818.408 - - - - -
Net book value of due dated but not impaired assets 28.237.646 23.497.446 - - - - -
Net book value of impaired assets - 8.065.951 - - - - -

- Due dated (Gross book value) - 22.180.010 - - - - -

- Provision (-) - (14.114.059) - - - - -

- Undue (Gross book value) - - - - - - -

- Provision (-) - - - - - - -
Off-balance sheet items exposed to credit risk - - - - - - 18.693.659
Amount exposed to maximum credit risk (**) 84.760.04 374.852.988 - - 115.684.361 - 18.693.659

* Other includes the letters of guarantee antstgiven by the Company (Note 13b).
(**)  The factors, increasing the credit reliabiliynd the guarantees received are not taken insdmration during the calculation of the amount.

As of 31 December 2008, the guarantee amount afndeémum exposure to credit risk is YT142.332.7B@sides, the guarantee amount of the assets wiech a
due but not impaired and are impaired are YTL70982 and YTL8.721.000, respectively.
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NOTE 24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND NATURE AND EXT ENT OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Con tinued)
b)  Credit risk (Continued)

2007
Trade Receivables Other Receivables
Related Third Related Third Bank Derivative
Party Party Party Party Deposits Instruments  Other(*)

Net book value of financial assets which are undue
and not impaired 56.364.993 222.782.697 - - 48.041.301 - -
Net book value of restructured financial assetbemvise that
will be considered as due dated or impaired - -
Net book value of due dated but not impaired assets 3.108.453 21.372.914 - - - - -

Net book value of impaired assets - 4.515.395 - - - - -

- Due dated (Gross book value) - 6.229.800 - - - - -

- Provision (-) - (1.714.405) - - - - -

- Undue (Gross book value) - - - - - - -

- Provision (-) - - - - - - -
Off-balance sheet items exposed to credit risk - - - - - - 34.612.572
Amount exposed to maximum credit risk (**) 59.473.46 248.671.006 - - 48.041.301 - 34.612.572

* Other includes the letters of gurantee andsbgiven by the Company (Note 13b).
(**)  The factors, increasing the credit reliabiliynd the guarantees received are not taken insdmration during the calculation of the amount.

As of 31 December 2007, the guarantee amount afnddémum exposure to credit risk is YTL128.630.1R6sides, the guarantee amount of the assets \ahéch
due but not impaired and are impaired are YTL69.&P® and YTL12.371.861, respectively.
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NOTE 24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND NATURE AND EXT ENT OF RISK ARISING
FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b)  Credit risk (Continued)

The aging of assets that are past due but not iegpas of 31 December 2008 and 2007 are as
follows:

2008
Receivables
Trade Other Bank Derivative

Receivables Receivables Deposits  Instruments Othe
Past due between 1-30 days 7.304.323 - - - -
Past due between 1-3 months 62.535.734 - - - -
Past due between 3-12 months 10.713.443 - - - -
Past due between 1-5 years - - - - -
Past due over 5 years - - - - -
Total past due balance 80.553.500 - - - -
Amount secured by collaterals (*) 103.518.076

2007
Receivables
Trade Other Bank Derivative

Receivables Receivables Deposits  Instruments Othe
Past due between 1-30 days 10.165.251 - - - -
Past due between 1-3 months 11.384.197 - - - -
Past due between 3-12 months 2.931.919 - - - -
Past due between 1-5 years - - - - -
Past due over 5 years - - - - -
Total past due balance 24.481.367 - - - -

Amount secured by collaterals (*) 69.306.623 - - - -

* Collaterals consist of the guarantee lettereingm from customers, security bonds and mortgages.
c) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is managed by mainintaining cash amdrketable securities, the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credis lared the ability to close out market positions.

Funding risk of the current and future liabilitissmanaged by providing sustainability of the asdes
sufficient high quality creditors and the sustailigbof the sufficient cash flows obtained from
operating activities. The Company management, deroio ensure continous liquidity, closely follows
up the timely collection of receivables, allocatégh intensity focus to prevent any financial burde
sourcing from late collections and determines @ghnon-cash credit limits to be activated in azse
need by the Company.

a7



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF FINANCIAL S TATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

TURK TRAKTOR VE Z IRAAT MAK INELERI A.S.

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2008 AND 2007

(Amounts expressed in New Turkish Lira (“YTL”"), @sls otherwise indicated)

NOTE 24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND NATURE AND EXT ENT OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Con tinued)

The undiscounted cash flows of liabilities intcerednt maturity groupings as of 31 December 20082800 are disclosed as follows:

2008
Up to 3 months to 1 year to Total contractual

Book value 3 months 1 year 5 years No maturity sl outflows
Financial liabilities 525.433.581 305.437.347 218.390.885 26.063.731 - 9.854.963
Trade payables 74.433.859 74.993.571 - - - 74.993.571
Trade payables due to related parties 38.094.856 448849 - - - 38.449.149
Provisions 12.360.035 2.362.248 9.997.787 - - 12.360.035
Provision for employment termination benefits 7.983 - - - 7.573.991 7.573.991
Other financial liabilities 6.131.604 6.131.604 - - - 6.131.604
Other current liabilities 13.564.372 13.564.362 - - - 13.564.362
Financial liabilities other than derivatives 677.52.298 440.938.281 228.388.672 26.063.731 7.573.991 702.964.675
Cash inflow from derivative instruments 56.196.000 58.013.832 - - - 58.013.832
Cash outflow from derivative instruments 62.327.604 64.343.525 - - - 64.343.525
Financial liabilities from derivative instruments 6.131.604 6.329.693 - - - 6.329.693

2007
Up to 3 months to 1 year to Total contractual

Book value 3 months 1 year 5 years No maturity sh outflows
Financial liabilities 158.318.250 29.349.274 64.691.743 70.986.533 - 165.027.550
Trade payables 73.348.459 73.963.480 - - - 73.963.480
Trade payables due to related parties 18.461.702 671858 - - - 18.671.158
Provisions 11.408.794 1.914.686 9.494.108 - - 11.408.794
Provision for employment termination benefits 7.500 - - - 7.475.590 7.475.590
Other financial liabilities 16.356.045 4.681.452 0501 11.154.192 - 16.356.045
Other current liabilities 18.601.346 18.601.346 - - - 18.601.346
Financial liabilities other than derivatives 303.90.186 147.181.396 74.706.252 70.986.533 7.475.590 11.583.963
Cash inflow from derivative instruments 75.327.470 14.838.057 17.144.279 51.538.336 - 83.520.672
Cash outflow from derivative instruments 91.683.515 17.887.400 19.520.934 64.343.525 - 101.751.859
Financial liabilities from derivative instruments 16.356.045 3.049.343 2.376.655 12.805.189 - 18.331.1
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NOTE 24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND NATURE AND EXT ENT OF RISK ARISING
FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Capital risk management

The Company'’s objectives when managing capitat@safeguard the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returnsfareholders and benefits for other stakeholdats an
to maintain an optimal capital structure to redim=ecost of capital.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Compangnitors capital on the basis of the net
debt/capital (gearing) ratio. This ratio is caltathas net debt divided by total capital. Net debt
calculated as total payables (including borrowiagsl trade and other payables, as shown in the
balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalentd. Cepiital is calculated as equity, as shown in the
balance sheet, plus net debt.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2008 and 200asai@lows:

2008 2007
Total payables 651.526.668 268.729.757
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) (115.288.5 (47.651.090)
Net debt 536.078.070 221.078.667
Total shareholders’ equity 285.552.805 302.936.118
Total capital 821.630.875 524.014.785
Net debt/capital 65% 42%

Fair value of financial assets

Fair value is the amount at which a financial mstent could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forcedesad liquidation, and is best evidenced by a quoted
market price, if one exists.

The estimated fair values of financial instrumédrage been determined by the Company using available
market information and appropriate valuation metihagies. However, judgment is necessarily required
to interpret market data to estimate the fair vaAmrordingly, the estimates presented herein ate n
necessarily indicative of the amounts the Compaydcrealise in a current market exchange.

The following methods and assumptions were usedtimate the fair value of the financial instrunsent
for which it is practical to estimate fair value:
Financial assets

The fair values of balances denominated in foreigmencies, which are translated at year-end exghan
rates, are considered to approximate carrying value

The fair values of cash and cash equivalent arsidered to approximate their respective carrying
values due to their short-term nature.

The discounted carrying values of trade receivadii@sg with the related allowances for uncolleditgbi
are estimated to be their fair values.

The fair value of financial instruments traded ativee markets is based on quoted market pricelseat t
balance sheet date. The quoted market price usdiddocial assets held by the Company is the atirre
bid price.
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NOTE 24 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND NATURE AND EXT ENT OF RISK ARISING
FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities

The fair values of short-term and long-term bankdweings are presented in Note 6.

Trade payables, which are measured at amortisdad ar@sconsidered to approximate their carrying
value.

NOTE 25 - EXPLANATION ADDED FOR CONVENIENCE TRANSL ATION INTO
ENGLISH

As of 31 December 2008, the financial reportinghdtads (defined as ‘CMB Financial Reporting
Standards’) differ from International Financial Rejng Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board with respe the application of inflation accounting and
presentation of the basic financial statementsthachotes to them. Accordingly, the accompanying
financial statements are not intended to presemtfittencial position and results of operations in
accordance with IFRS.
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